Public Document Pack

Children, Education and
Skills Sub Committee
Wednesday, 17 March 2021
Thursday, 25 March 2021 commencing at 6.00pm. The meeting will be held virtually
and live streamed - please use the link below. Agenda
Item
1.

Page

Apologies for absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting

2.

Appointment of substitutes
To be informed of the appointment of any substitute members for
the meeting.

3.

To receive any declarations of interest
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that
interest.
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the requirement
to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have
been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda

4.

Minutes

5-8

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2021.
5.

An overview of Children and Young People's Mental Health

9 - 24

To provide Members of the Sub-Committee an update of the impact of
Covid 19 on children and young people’s mental health
6.

Post 16 Education

25 - 42

To provide an update on participation and the options available in post
16 education, employment and training in North Tyneside.
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting and receive information about it.
North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the information you need.
We are able to provide our documents in alternative formats including Braille, audiotape, large
print and alternative languages.

Agenda
Item

Page
Circulation overleaf …

Members of the Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee
Councillor Trish Brady
Councillor Joanne Cassidy
Councillor Karen Lee
Councillor Andy Newman
Councillor Erin Parker-Leonard
Councillor Matthew Thirlaway (Chair)
Mr Stephen Fallon
Mrs Michelle Ord
Rev Michael Vine

Councillor Sean Brockbank
Councillor Nigel Huscroft
Councillor Maureen Madden
Councillor Pat Oliver (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Steven Phillips
Councillor Matt Wilson

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee
Thursday, 14 January 2021
Present:

Apologies:

CES29

Councillor M Thirlaway (Chair)
Councillors T Brady, S Brockbank, J Cassidy, S Fallon,
N Huscroft, K Lee, A Newman, P Oliver, M Ord, E ParkerLeonard.
S Phillips, Rev M Vine and M Wilson
Councillors M Madden

Appointment of substitutes

There were no substitute members appointed.

CES30

To receive any declarations of interest

Councillor Erin Parker Leonard declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest because she is
employed by Newcastle City Council as a Foster Carer.
Councillor Sean Brockbank declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest because he is
employed as a Cafcass Guardian.

CES31

Minutes

Resolved that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 23 January 2020 be confirmed
and signed by the Chair.

CES32

Corporate Parenting Activity During the Covid 19 Pandemic

The sub-committee received a report on how the Authority had exercised its corporate
parenting responsibilities during the Covid 19 pandemic. The statutory activity of children’s
services had continued throughout the pandemic. Social workers and social care staff had
continued to come to work and to work remotely to meet the needs of vulnerable children and
young people in North Tyneside.
There were currently 299 children and young people in care. The majority (224) lived in
fostering households. All aspects of the fostering service had continued. Officers and
members both paid tribute to the foster care community who had responded to the
pandemic with stoic resilience. In some instances carers had placed themselves and their
families at risk to respond to the needs of children in care. The Authority had 157 approved
foster carers and work to recruit others had continued.

Page 5

The Authority continued to provide support to 162 care leavers. Personal Advisors had been
working from home maintaining contact with young people using telephones, face time and
social media. The resilience shown by the care leaving population had been humbling. They had
come together to support each other practically and emotionally and have developed networks
to problem solve.
The Authority’s 5 children’s homes had continued to operate during the pandemic with staff and
carers working throughout. There had been challenges with young people struggling to cope
with the implications of lock down and some not being able to adhere to the social distancing
rules. Where young people had needed to self-isolate due to be symptomatic, they had been
cared for within the homes. Where young people had tested positive for Covid 19, staff had
volunteered to work in these homes with young people in a ‘care bubble’.
Staff and carers had received welfare and psychologist support and PPE had been made
available and had been used. All staff at work with identified under lying health complaints had
been supported with individual risk assessments and when required to do so those who are
extremely clinically vulnerable are at home with work provided. Arrangements were in place for
staff from other homes to provide cover if required and several staff from other areas of the
council have been inducted to support this work.
It had been apparent during the pandemic that some of the areas of focus from the Corporate
Parenting Forum had shifted. For example, concern for the number of children missing from care
had declined dramatically. Other areas such as the need to promote the health needs of our
children, and to ensure that children are placed as close to or within North Tyneside as possible
remained areas of priority.
The sub-committee examined in more detail the reasons why children and young people in care
in some instances had to be placed outside of the borough, they discussed the benefits of
children being placed closer to home and how the number of out of borough placements might
be minimised.
Members considered the impact of lockdowns on the mental health of children in care which was
unlikely to be fully understood for sometime yet. In the short term the closure of schools and the
delivery of on-line learning had presented some challenges in terms of encouraging vulnerable
young people to continue to engage with their education.
Officers described the difficult balance between allowing family time for children in care but doing
so safely and minimising the risks associated with social contact across different households.
Discussions were ongoing about prioritising care workers for testing and vaccinations.
The Chair thanked officers for the report and on behalf of the sub-committee he expressed
gratitude and appreciation for the extraordinary efforts of social workers and carers in
maintaining services throughout this challenging period.

CES33

Report of the Children's Readiness for School Sub-Group

In September 2019, the sub-committee had established a sub group to review the early
intervention support available for parents in North Tyneside to enable children to be ready
for school and identify if any improvements could be made to the support available to
ensure the outcomes were improved for their children and families.
2

Page 6

Thursday, 14 January 2021

The sub group had completed its work and the sub-committee were presented with a report
setting out its findings and a series of recommendations to Cabinet.
Resolved that the report of the Children’s Readiness for School Sub-Group be approved for
submission to the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee for consideration
at its meeting on 2 February 2021.

CES34

Child Sexual Exploitation Update

The sub-committee was presented with a report setting out details of work undertaken
during 2020 to develop the Council’s response to the exploitation of children, including those
Missing, Slavery, Exploitation (both criminal and sexual) and Trafficked (MSET).
There had been a significant amount of work undertaken to further strengthen how the
Authority safeguarded and reported on those children who were at risk of or were being
exploited within North Tyneside. Throughout 2020 a working group had met to review and
develop policies, process, responses and data sets in relation to MSET, building on the well
established multi-agency MSET arrangements operating across the Northumbria Police
area. This work had focussed on areas such as updating processes and documents, risk
assessment tools, referral pathways and case management systems and raising awareness
of exploitation across partnerships and in the community.
The new MSET processes had been agreed with the Police and partners and would be
launched in February 2021 together with awareness raising sessions for the community,
partnerships and within the Council so everyone understood and could respond to MSET
within North Tyneside.
Often children and young people who were at risk of, or were being, exploited were those
that were reported missing by their carers on a regular basis. Between October and
December 2020 there had been 84 reported instances of a young person being missing.
This related to 21 young people. Of those 21 young people 17 were all returned within less
than 24 hours with a high proportion only being missing for a few hours. Officers described
the processes for recording and responding to incidents of young people reported as
missing. Since the commencement of the global pandemic in March 2020 there had been a
decrease in the number of our young people who go missing.
The sub-committee considered the use and effectiveness of harbouring notices as one of a
number ways of disrupting those interactions which may lead to the exploitation of children.
Members expressed concern that in some cases the placement of children in different
settings may create new and unknown opportunities for exploitation. It was noted that the
MSET framework provided the Authority and the Police with the mechanisms to manage
risks but this had to be balanced against the need for young people to be allowed freedom
to live their lives and to make their own informed choices.
The Chair thanked officers for the report.

3

Page 7

Thursday, 14 January 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Meeting: Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee
Date:

25 March 2021

Title:

An overview of Children and Young People’s Mental health

Author:

Diane Buckle, Assistant Director Education
Elaine Robson, Health and Wellbeing Adviser
Rob Smith, School Improvement Adviser PE, Sport & Health

Service: Health, Education, Care and Safeguarding
Wards affected: All
1.

Purpose of Report

To provide members of the committee an update of the impact of COVID 19 on children and
young peoples’ mental health.
2.

Introduction

Prior to the outbreak of coronavirus, the Local Authority experienced an increase in the proportion
of children and young people presenting with social, emotional, mental health (SEMH) issues.
Between 2017/18 and 2019/20 there was a 45% increase in the proportion of EHCP (Education,
Health and Care Plans) issued with SEMH as a primary need, alongside an increase in the
proportion of children and young people presenting with emerging SEMH needs. As below:
SEND population

%
Number
Full CYP population
%
Number

CYP with SEMH as
primary need (both
EHCP and SEND
Support)
23.5% (1155/4911)
1155

CYP with SEMH as
primary need (just as
a % of EHCP)
20.8% (233/1119)
233

CYP with SEMH as
primary need (just as
a % of SEND
Support)
24% (922/3792)
922

CYP with SEMH as primary need
3.7% (1155/30963)
1155

We recognise that these statistics predate COVID 19 and do not reflect any impact of the
pressures that national lock down and restrictions have placed on our children and young people.

Page 9

The government are committed to significantly expand mental health support for children and
young people, recognising that young people have been uniquely impacted by the pandemic. To
this end they have allocated £79 million towards this. Several research studies have informed this
decision.
NHS research suggests 1 in 6 young people may now have a mental health problem, up from 1
in 9 in 2017. It is anticipated that the number of mental health support teams in schools and
colleges will grow from 59 to 400 by April 2023, supporting nearly 3 million children. The ambition
is that mental health support teams will work in a variety of ways, including enabling children to
text their local mental health support team, with a health professional responding within an hour
during the school day offering them advice, or providing families with tips on how to spot that the
children and young people are struggling with their mental health.
Nationally, several studies indicate that returning to school is not enough to restore children’s
mental health. A new study has found that nationally there was a significant rise in emotional and
behavioural issues among primary school pupils, following the first lockdown. Academics at
Essex, Surrey and Birmingham universities found that when children returned to school in
September, their wellbeing levels were slightly higher than they had been in July but were “still
much lower than pre-pandemic levels". Dr Birgitta Rabe, reader in economics at Essex
University’s Institute for Social and Economic Research and one of the paper’s authors, said the
research shows that “going back to school does not appear to be sufficient for children to ‘bounce
back’. The study, published by the Institute for Social and Economics Research, tracked children's
mental health and how it changed over the past three years using data from household
longitudinal study Understanding Society and its linked Covid-19 survey.
The chief inspector of Ofsted, Amanda Spielman, said remote learning had been a slog for many
and that issues like self-harm and eating disorders were on the rise. Ms Spielman warned schools
and parents they had to be alert to the fact that serious mental health difficulties would persist
even after face-to-face classes resume. She said pupils had endured “boredom, loneliness,
misery and anxiety” over the last two months. “There is a minority – and let’s hope it is not too
large a minority – whose problems have increased, and it is really important that we are good at
recognising where problems are arising,” she said. “Things like eating disorders, things like selfharm, and mental health services are very aware of the kinds of problems that have been
increasing and whether they can expect more cases coming through, so everybody needs to be
alert to these,"
More locally, we know that of the 114 Fair Access Referrals since September 2020 (accurate up
to Friday 29th January 2021).
•
•
•

85 students have been identified as having mental health which has deteriorated since
lockdown 2020 or identified as their mental health being the same, which was poor.
29 students did not have a Covid mental health question completed.
There were no students with improved mental health.

This equates to just over half of students considered as part of Fair Access protocols, having
experienced a decline in their mental health.
We also recognise that although many studies and commentary, focus on the detrimental
impact of the pandemic on children and young people’s mental health, we know that
anecdotally, some pupils have thrived from more time at home and from accessing smaller
class groups.

Page 10

3.

Details

During the pandemic, Local Authority officers and school leaders have maintained a focus on
monitoring pupils’ mental health and wellbeing, recognising that many families have
experienced raised levels of anxiety.
We are mindful that none of us truly understand the longer-term impact of COVID 19 on the
mental health and wellbeing of our children and young people, but to try to capture some
emerging issues we completed a staff survey in February 2021. The outcomes are a snapshot
of the views of staff in school at that point. We received responses from 60% of our 79 schools.
From this sample, 77% of responses were from Primary and First Schools so this has
influenced the data. We recognise, that this was before the wider re-opening of schools on
March 8th, so more issues may arise as pupils return to school.
Findings are as follows:
•
•
•
•

96% of schools felt COVID 19 had a detrimental impact on the mental health of children
and young people. It was also felt that our children and young people are resilient and
will overcome the issues they may be experiencing with the right nurturing and support,
Anxiety, loneliness, relationship issues and poor sleep rank the highest in terms of
negative impact.
Free text responses suggested that the first national lockdown and period of school
closure had less of a negative impact than ongoing periods of isolation due to positive
cases and contact tracing
Some positive impact included:
o increased awareness and discussion about mental health and wellbeing
o increased family time has had benefits on behaviour
o greater time to focus on vulnerable pupils
o strengthened relationships between home and school

We understand the strong link between physical and mental health. Restrictions placed upon
schools and clubs to prevent the spread of the infection has meant that children and young
people have had:
• no access to community clubs and sports facilities
• no after school clubs and activity groups
• no access to competition
• limitations on team sports and PE activities in school
Actions to mitigate
At the start of this academic year, Local Authority officers, working alongside staff from
Moorgate, established a Covid recovery programme for a cohort of Year 11 pupils all displaying
mental health issues and with poor school attendance in the previous academic year. Of the
original 33 students identified, 31 remain on the programme and are in receipt of mental health
support. These pupils are not included in the Fair Access figures.
Wellbeing for Education Return is a national initiative funded by Dfe and Department of Health
and Social Care to provide tools to enable schools staff to protect and strengthen the whole
school’s resilience to wellbeing and mental health impacts of COVID 19. All schools in North
Tyneside have accessed training for delivery of these materials.
In addition, Local Authority officers began the first phase of a pilot project to achieve an
ambition to train all staff and pupils from North Tyneside schools in mental health awareness,
with two staff trained as mental health first aiders. The intention behind this universal offer, is to

Page 11

ensure there is a shared language and understanding of the impact of poor mental ill-health.
Thus, enabling all staff to provide appropriate responses to all pupils at the point of need. This is
intended to underpin more specialist support from ‘Thrive’ practitioners. (Please see associated
briefing paper)
There remains ongoing access to: ‘Kooth’, an online counselling support for young people with
mental health issues, Educational Psychology team and Thrive practitioners.
4.

Background Information

The following documents have been used in the compilation of this report and may be inspected
at the offices of the author.
•
•
•
5.

NHS reports on Mental Health and Wellbeing
Wellbeing Return for Education materials
Ofsted: commentary from HMCI
Appendices

Associated briefing paper: Embedding the Whole School Approach through a universal Mental
Health First Aid programme

Page 12

Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park,
North Tyneside, NE27 0BY
Tel: 0345 2000 101

To:

NT CYP MHEWB
Senior officer group

Author:

Diane Buckle, Assistant Director for
Education Early Years and School
Improvement Service
Kevin Burns, SSIO Vulnerable Learners

Date:

2 November 2020

Title of Briefing: Embedding the Whole School Approach through a universal Mental Health First
Aid programme
Purpose of Briefing
To give an overview of the planned long-term proposal to scale up existing work and enhance the
universal offer across education settings by embedding a whole school approach to promoting good
mental health.
Education settings can be a crucial protective factor to promoting good mental health and we want to
build emotionally healthy, supportive environments that enable all our young people to build resilience
and thrive.
This proposal takes an evidence-based approach to equip senior leaders with practical and
sustainable approaches that will put mental health at the heart of strategic school improvement. The
ambition in the first phase is to upskill, support and train all adults who work in schools with children
and young people to have competence and confidence to discuss mental health and to better listen,
reassure and respond to children, young people and their families. The subsequent phases will roll
out Mental Health First Aid to children, families and communities.
By committing to a whole school approach and scaling up training in Mental Health First Aid across all
schools in North Tyneside education settings will be able to actively support the emotional needs of
young people and act on any concerns they might have. This is in line with the five identified
outcomes for children and young people:
•
•
•
•
•

I am safe
I am healthy
I am happy
I have opportunities
I have a voice

Page 13

Briefing note

This work takes place within the broader long-term strategic goals of the Barnardo’s Strategic
Alliance. This proposal will support and complement the Department for Education (DfE) and the
Department of Health and Social Care on the Wellbeing for Education Return. This is new national
training package that has been developed to provide guidance and resources for education staff on
responding to the impact of Covid-19 on the wellbeing of their students and pupils, until March 2021.
This package reinforces throughout, the need for a whole school approach to promoting good mental
health and will compliment this proposal.
This proposal also links with the implementation of statutory Relationships Education in primary
schools, Relationships and Sex Education in secondary schools and Health Education in all schools,
which includes teaching about mental wellbeing.
1. Background
‘Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention’ is a key strategic priority of North
Tyneside’s Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Strategy.
The intention of this proposal is to scale up and build on the existing work that has taken place in
education settings and build mental health literacy across the whole system. It will complement
and strengthen the interventions currently funded via the Barnardo’s Strategic Alliance.
1.1.

Education Settings: Senior Leadership Commitment

The Assistant Director of Education is advocating this proposal and has had numerous
conversations with Senior Leaders in Education Settings who are committed to taking forward this
approach in North Tyneside.
This proposal requires a long-term commitment from senior leadership teams to ensure that efforts
to promote a whole school approach are embedded across each education setting. An integral
principle is a commitment to promoting staff health and wellbeing, so they can support students.
This also supports the mental health and well being of our work force making them more able to
facilitate healthy strategies for managing within their wider communities.
In order to secure sustainability of the approach senior leaders will sign up to the eight principles to
promote emotional health and wellbeing (see figure 1). The 8 principles are informed by evidence
and practitioner feedback about what works, and if applied consistently and comprehensively will
contribute towards helping protect and promote student mental health and emotional wellbeing.
(PHE (2015) Promoting children and young people's emotional health and wellbeing)
1.2.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Broad Aims
To support schools in building back better in a post-Covid environment, where existing
mental health issues may have been exacerbated.
To ensure a shared understanding across the whole school improvement service on
promoting good mental health in education settings, including a focus on the importance of
staff well-being.
To provide child and adolescent mental health training to all school staff, so they are better
placed to support all children and young people when they need it.
To use audited outcomes to support all schools and settings to take a whole school
approach to becoming increasingly emotionally healthy.
To use school community voice to enable to check and challenge the implementation of
these approaches.
To carry out a simultaneous review of behaviour approaches and relationships policies and
curriculum plans in schools.
To provide all children and young people with mental health awareness training, to improve
their awareness and understanding of the language associated with mental health and
wellbeing which will complement the Friend’s resilience training already in some schools.
Support an ‘open door’, inclusive education environment in all our schools to ensure our
children and young people can speak confidently about their anxieties and concerns and
where they can access early help to support their emotional wellbeing and mental health.

Page 14

Briefing note

•

That all schools and settings in North Tyneside will provide an enhanced ‘universal mental
health offer’ in their work with all children, young people, their families and wider
communities to enhance resilience and embed coping strategies.

Figure 1: Promoting Children and Young People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing.

2. North Tyneside Context
The impact of Covid-19 on the mental health of children and young people is still unclear. Early
research suggests that some children may be experiencing increased anxiety and stress
about the virus. School closures and social distancing measures have led to a loss of
structure and social contact that coupled with reductions in support services, could lead to a
range of poor mental health outcomes.
Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic we had already noted the increase in prevalence of mental health
issues amongst some cohorts of our children and young people:
•
•

Proportion of children and young people with additional educational needs where emotional
and mental health is noted as the primary need has risen from 15% to 24% (2016-2020)
The number of children and young people with issues around their mental health and who
are supported at a statutory level increased 36% in the period 2016-19. By January 2020
this had increased again, a further 47% increase in just one year

North Tyneside school surveys carried out in 2019 highlighted that compared to England our
primary school children were
•
•
•

more likely to have lower resilience
More likely to report worrying
More likely to report fear of going to school because of bullying

And our Secondary school children were:
- Less happy with life
- Less likely to have high self-esteem

Page 15

Briefing note

As stated, with the leadership of the Assistant Director of Education the aims of this work are to
provide an enhanced preventative universal offer by scaling up previous initiatives including:
•

Emotionally Healthy School Resource Pack the Emotionally Healthy Schools resource
pack was produced to help schools implement a Whole Schools Approach to supporting
students’ mental health and wellbeing. The impact of COVID 19 is not lost on headteachers
and governors, who acknowledge the importance of capturing this to better adjust their
provision.

•

Mental Health First Aid training in secondary schools Training sessions were delivered
during late 2018 for secondary schools in North Tyneside. This was focused on teaching
staff rather than the strategic leads within schools and did not reference individual school
circumstances. It is currently unclear how many staff who undertook the training are still
working within our school, but in Autumn term the school improvement Health and
Wellbeing officer will audit schools.

•

Schools Link Programme North Tyneside took part in the Mental Health Services and
Schools Link Programme ran by the Anna Freud National Centre for Children and Families
and the DfE. A series of workshops brought together Children and Young People's Mental
Health Services (CYPMHS), schools and colleges to strengthen communication and joint
working arrangements between schools and mental health professionals. Throughout the
period of extended school closure this aspect was strengthened further by creating an
easily accessible ‘one-stop’ for those families most in need.

This approach will also complement the initiatives funded via Barnardo’s Strategic Alliance (on hold
due to Covid-19) such as FRIENDS resilience and Adolescent THRIVE training that secondary
schools are signed up to and which would continue to strengthen and provide additionality to the
work proposed.
Building on and creating a culture of positive mental health and wellbeing in education settings is a
key part of the overall system wide approach to improving outcomes for children and young
people. It will be supported further by a simultaneous review of behaviour approaches and
relationships policies and curriculum plans in schools.
We will also ensure we link to and complement the other workstreams ongoing at the current time.
The table below provides an easy reference across the four strands. Additional detail is recorded
below the table.

Page 16

Briefing note

Who is involved?

What is it?

The table below shows how the MHFA proposed programme links and complements to other
streams of work.
Mental Health First
Aid

Wellbeing for Return
Project

Every Mind Matters

Statutory Relationships, Sex and
Health Education

A locally driven, long
term
project
to
enhance the universal
mental health offer for
all children and young
people.

A nationally funded
project to support
schools in the short
term with welcoming
back children and
young people into full
time education.

A set of virtual
resources from Public
Health England for
schools to access
encouraging
good
mental health- includes
resources for parents

A statutory curriculum to improve the
quality,
consistency
and
effectiveness of the teaching of these
subjects as part of PSHE education.
All schools have been sent
information and offers of support and
training via their PSHE lead.

16 schools currently
taking part with a roll
out that aims to
include all schools
over the next 18-24
months following the
pilot.

All schools invited to
access the training
over the next 2 terms

All
educational
professionalsresources have been
shared with heads,
SENDCos and Pupil
Premium Leads

All schools must now teach Health
Education which includes mental
wellbeing, Primary schools must
teach Relationships Education and
secondary schools Relationships
and Sex Education.

Mental Health First Aid
Some initial work has already taken place.
• Schools were invited to take part in project with the long-term aim to enhance the mental
health provision for all children and young people in the borough.
• 16 schools were identified, and the initial 2-day training has been undertaken for two senior
members of staff from each of the identified schools. This means we now have 32 trained
‘Mental Health First Aiders’ in our schools.
• The schools are now carrying out their baseline audits of provision to establish next steps,
actions and roll out of further training.
• 30 local authority staff have undertaken the ‘Mental Health Awareness Training’ and 15 have
are also trained as ‘Mental Health First Aiders’ with the aim of enhancing our direct work and
training with aspects of mental health and wellbeing good practice.
• Once the initial phase is evaluated, we will be inviting all schools to develop their own
universal offer.
Wellbeing for Education Return
• All schools have been invited to attend a nationally funded but locally delivered training
package considering the impact of lockdown and return to education on our children and
young people
• This will be delivered over the coming months by a team of LA officers.
• All schools are encouraged to access this series of 2 sessions.
Every Mind Matters
• A package of online resources for schools and settings to access and signpost to that focus
on mental health and wellbeing developed by Public Health England.
• Schools can access these as and when they need them.
• These have been highlighted and signposted through Local authority networks and training
events.
Statutory Relationships, Sex and Health Education
• It became statutory to teach Relationships, Sex and Health Education from September 2020
• Due to the coronavirus and closures, schools who were not in a position to implement fully
from September have been granted some flexibility and now have until Summer term 2021 to
do so but must be able to demonstrate the steps they are taking to do this.

Page 17

Briefing note

•

•

2.1.

Health Education includes the teaching of mental wellbeing and schools have been
encouraged to priorities this subject first. To support schools the DfE provided a training
module for school staff titled Teaching Mental Wellbeing. The EYSIS adapted this training
module and have shared it with PSHE leads through a number of sessions. This training is
still available on request and focuses on what to teach about mental wellbeing.
The link with mental health and relationships runs throughout the RSHE curriculum and this is
highlighted in the Wellbeing for Education Return project.
What is the aim of the proposal to roll out MHFA across education settings?

We are looking to embed a whole school approach to mental health and wellbeing for our schools
and communities by creating emotionally healthy schools across the borough. There are key
milestones and impacts we would aim to see over the next 4 years, which are:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

2.2.

North Tyneside Early Years School Improvement Service are trained to an appropriate
level so that mental health and wellbeing is front and centre in all aspects of our offer and
an intrinsic part of our training for schools. Officers are mental health first aid trainers to
enable future sustainability.
All staff in our schools and settings are appropriately trained in mental health first aid.
All schools have a mental health champion and a team of mental health first aiders within
the staff cohort, the leadership team and the governing body or local board and are signed
up to embedding a whole school approach.
Staff in schools will train children and young people in mental health awareness with
identified peer to peer support available. Such training opportunities will subsequently
extend to parents and the wider community.
This enhanced universal offer within school has a positive impact on children young people
and their families.
Curriculum develops and changes considering national guidance, the local context and as
an impact of the training so that mental health is treated as part of everyday life.
Undertake appropriate action research methodologies to capture the impact of this
approach for wider dissemination.
Why have we chosen this approach?

We wanted to use an approach that we were confident would work well in schools. In identifying
Mental Health First Aid we looked for approaches that had supported schools to have a positive
impact on their young people and communities. We wanted to ensure that we built resilience,
prevention and early intervention into our drive for emotionally healthy schools’ so that all children
are well prepared for transition onto their next stage of education.
We have sourced serving credible school leaders who are highly successful mental health trainers.
The trainers can offer a more bespoke approach to their training, delivering relevant school-based
scenarios and considerations to their training programme. Their work in their own school has led to
improved staff attendance and has increased staff confidence in tackling and discussing mental
health concerns by a third. Anecdotal evidence suggested fewer referrals to outside agencies, for
example referrals to CAMHS have dropped by 60%, and as a result of extended mental health
awareness for parents there is increased parental confidence to talk about mental health.
We want to focus our approach on children and young people to have a greater understanding
about their own mental health, their resilience and their coping strategies. Ultimately this will lead a
reduction in the need for more formalised mental health support.
It is our ambition to replicate this success across all North Tyneside schools. Thus, enabling
meaningful support and challenge to embed the essential elements of the training into school
practice.

Page 18

Briefing note

This will dovetail with Barnardo’s Strategic Alliance approach of improving peer support,
participation of children and young people and co-production of approaches. Thus, leading to
children and young people better able to speak to their peers, family members and professionals
with assurance and a commonly shared language.
2.3.

How will we know our approach is working? (Key Performance Indicators)

We will see:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Young people report increased resilience and improved mental wellbeing via schools’
surveys delivered through the Barnardo’s strategic alliance
Pre and post audit outcomes will show:
o Schools confidence supporting early intervention and prevention around mental
health and wellbeing increases
o Parental confidence in schools to support early intervention and prevention around
mental health and wellbeing increases, they also report better experience of the
support and challenge they have received
o Children and young people report better experiences and can identify using coping
strategies and say how they have been supported
The rapid increase in the number of children and young people with emotional and mental
health issues being noted as their primary need will slow and the proportion will be closer to
that seen nationally.
The number of children and young people with issues around mental health and wellbeing
noted as their primary need who are excluded from schools and settings reduces.
The number of children and young people with issues around mental health and wellbeing
noted as their primary need who are subject to managed moves reduces.
% of schools with trained Mental Health First Aiders increasing towards an aspiration of 100%
Number of schools with at least 10% of the staff trained as Mental Health First Aiders will
increase with an aspiration for all schools to have this level of capacity
% of education staff trained to at least the level of Mental Health Awareness Training
increasing towards an aspiration of 100% of those who are not trained to the higher level

3. Project plan
3.1.

Training for Local Authority staff in the school improvement service
•
•
•
•
•

•

A cohort of 30 key staff from across the service to be trained as Mental Health Aware
A cohort of 16 key staff from across the service to be trained in the equivalent of the 2-day
Mental Health First Aider programme
Key staff use messages from training to feed into the Local Authority training offer and school
support work to begin to raise the profile and raise awareness of mental health and wellbeing
over several platforms.
Where issues are raised within a school or setting, officers can offer support with auditing
provision and specific support packages.
Smaller cohort of officers (5) are identified as potential trainers and undergo 7-day
accredited training so that they can offer mental health first aid training within the Local
Authority to reduce costs and increase sustainability. Due to current restriction this training
is not currently available. It is not expected to be available before 2021.
We will also identify a Mental Health First and Wellbeing lead officer who will coordinate
and support the implementation plan to deliver this piece of work.

Page 19

Briefing note

Timeline for Pilot Schools

Whole school
audit complete
Base line surveys
undertaken

•

2 additional staff
trained as Mental
Health First Aiders

Second cohort of
10 staff identified
for Mental Health
Awarenes
Training
2 additional staff
trained as Mental
Health First Aiders

Third cohort of 10
staff identified for
Mental Health
Awarenes
Training

Five

First cohort of 10
staff identified for
Mental Health
Awareness
Training

Four

2 key staff trained
as Mental Health
First Aiders

Three

Planned roll out for schools. It should be noted that in the current context this is an
aspiration as it may not be possible for all schools to enable all staff sufficient time out of
school to achieve this in the time available. The aim is for 10% of staff to be trained as Mental
Health First Aiders and for all staff to access the Awareness training. There is likely to be a
need to offer additional sessions to our initial 16 schools to enable us to meet our aspiration.
These five steps cover October 2020 to July 2021 in the 16 identified schools.

One

•

Two

3.2.

Whole school
audit reviewed an
updated
Impact surveys
undertaken

2 additional staff
trained as Mental
Health First Aiders

Once the process is completed for the first 16 schools we will review this process to ensure
that the wider roll out from October 2021 to July 2023 is as effective as possible.

3.3 Detail of the Programme Content Sept to July – 16 schools.
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Group of 16 schools identified to complete Mental Health First Aid training.
Two key staff from each school will then be trained in Mental Health First Aid, one of who
must be a member of the senior leadership team. They will become the mental health
leads for their schools.
Identified staff will be supported to undertake auditing of their provision, this would include
baseline information to support in the measuring of impact. They will produce an action
plan which will feed into wider school improvement planning.
Regular networks will be facilitated by Local Authority officers, to support pilot schools to
develop and strengthen their universal offer and to access relevant ongoing training
Wider School staff from each of the 16 schools will access mental health champion
training, which will extend to pupils and then interested parents. Thus, facilitating an ‘open
door’ policy and approach to mental health and wellbeing, and supporting an emotionally
healthy schools’ agenda. Wider training will be delivered in the first instance by external
school-based trainers and subsequently by Local Authority officers once they become
accredited as Mental Health First Aid trainers.
We intend the process to be supported by action research methodologies to better
disseminate the project findings. Opportunities to check progress and measure impact
taken at regular points through surveys and audits.
It is our intention that the 16 schools become centres of excellence, offering a hub model of
support to locality schools.

3.4 How will we know if the initial phase is successful?
In this strand of our work to develop the universal offer for mental and health and wellbeing we are
clear in what we are hoping to achieve.
We want school communities to have a shared language around mental health and wellbeing, we
want school staff to confident in recognising and being able to support their mental health and that of
others. We also want children, young people and their families to share that language and be able to
understand mental health.

Page 20

Briefing note

We will measure the progress in the following ways
•
•
•

% of schools with trained Mental Health First Aiders
Number of schools with at least 10% of the staff trained as Mental Health First Aiders
% of education staff trained to at least the level of Mental Health Awareness Training

We want the impact to be across staff, children, young people and their families and as a result we
need to explore the qualitive impact of the work not just engagement.
To enable us to do that the 16 schools are trialling two mechanisms by which we will gather the wider
impact.
The first is a self-facilitated audit. This audit covers:
• Positive Mental Health Approaches
• Engagement
• Relationships
• Identity
• Equality and Diversity
• Environment
• Leadership
This offers a scoring and RAG rating that we can use as a baseline prior to schools implementing
learning from the Mental Health First Aider training. This audit will be revisited by at the end of the
initial 6 month and 12-month period of phase 1. This will enable us to not where the most impact has
been seen, help us maintain momentum and highlight and address barriers to success.
The second mechanism is a set of surveys by which schools can gather information about staff,
children, young people and families this will collect and collate understanding feelings and
perceptions. We are looking for a positive shift in respondents’ confidence in managing their own
mental health and the confidence they have in the institution to meet needs.
The potential survey questions are being developed and refined with the support of the wider team
and the 16 schools.
The current iteration of these questions are recorded in the table below. These questions help to
refine what we choosing to value in this work and what impact we want to see. Following the initial
phase, we will further refine the questions to ensure they are effective in the gathering the information
we need to check and challenge the impact we are having within our school communities.
Children and Young People
1. There are people who
listen if I have worries
2. There are places to go to
talk
3. I can spend time in quiet
places
4. I can tell people what I
think
5. When I talk people listen
6. I can tell you what I’m good
at
7. I know what I need to get
better at
8. It’s OK to get things wrong
9. If things go wrong
someone will help me

Parents and Carers
1. My child has someone they
trust at school
2. The school listens to my
concerns
3. I know what my child is
good at
4. If my child tells me their
worries, I know what to do
5. I know what my child needs
to do to improve
6. There are people in school
to help my child when
things go wrong
7. I’m confident my child is
safe in school
8. I’m confident my child is
Page 21
happy in school

Staff
1. If a child tells me about
their worries, I know what
to do
2. I’m confident that all the
children I work with have a
voice.
3. I recognise if my own
wellbeing is suffering and
know what to do
4. I know how to spot signs
that a child is struggling
with their mental health
5. As a school we make sure
all children feel safe and
happy

Briefing note

10. If I lose my temper, I know
what to do

9. I know how to spot the
signs that my child is
struggling with their mental
health
10. School helps my child deal
with setbacks

6. As a school we all work in
the same way to support
vulnerable children
7. As a school we offer a safe
environment- there is no
where children feel unsafe
8. I plan for opportunities to
increase resilience and
wellbeing when working
with children
9. If a colleague was
struggling with their
wellbeing, I would know
what to do
10. As a school we offer good
support to parents

3.5 Initial phase: 16 schools Programme Costs: Sept 2020 to March 2021
Officer Time for co-ordination (2 days a week over 6 months) approx. costs

£11,087

LA Cohort Training
• LA officer Mental Health Awareness training £1,500
• LA officer Mental Health First Aider training £1,500
£3,000
Schools Cohort Training
• Group 1 (8 schools)
• Mental Health First Aider training £1,500 x 4
£6,000
•

Mental Health Awareness training 30 staff per school £1,500 x 8

•
•

Group 2 (8 schools)
Mental Health First Aider training £1,500 x 4

£12,000

£6,000
•

Mental Health Awareness training 30 staff per school £1,500 x 8
£12,000

Total costs £50,087

4. Wider Roll Out of the MHFA programme
4.1 How will this develop?
Based upon the findings from the initial programme, we will embark upon an all schools wider roll
out, shaping the programme to meet the needs of all schools. Our ultimate goal is to have all staff
in all schools appropriately trained within three years and having an impact on the wider school
community. While we build towards that goal, we will continue to engage in ongoing and short-term
projects so that we consistently enhancing the universal offer.

Page 22

Briefing note

Once we have our own staff trained as accredited trainers the costs will reduce and enable us to
build a sustainable programme of training, updating and enhancing. This will also help us to secure
the intention that schools will be supported to extend their mental health awareness training to their
pupils and parents.
We will need to run 8 additional phases of training with 8 schools accessing each phase. We
expect to follow the steps as seen in the pilot however the nature of the pilot is to enable us to
adapt and develop this approach based on what we have learnt.

Whole school
audit complete

Base line surveys
undertaken

2 additional staff
trained as Mental
Health First
Aiders

2 additional staff
trained as Mental
Health First
Aiders

Third cohort of 10
staff identified
for Mental Health
Awarenes
Training

Five

Second cohort of
10 staff identified
for Mental Health
Awarenes
Training

Four

First cohort of 10
staff identified
for Mental Health
Awareness
Training

Three

2 key staff
trained as Mental
Health First
Aiders

Two

One

Wider roll out (Sept 2021 – Jan 2022)
Whole school
audit reviewed an
updated
Impact surveys
undertaken

2 additional staff
trained as Mental
Health First
Aiders

The time scale for the wider roll out will be informed by the initial 16 schools. Our initial intention is
that we will aim to run one training programme for 16 schools per half term. This suggests the
wider training roll out will run from September 2021 to January 2022. Given that some half terms
within the period run to only 4-5 weeks we have thought about building some additional time in this
timescale. Therefore, the aim would be to complete the training rollout for all schools by April 2022this allows for 10 half-terms. The capacity provided by the Local Authority officer will be initially
planned to continue up to September 2022 to support the embedding and enhancing of the
universal offer.
4.2 Wider Roll Sept 21- April 2022
Option 1
Use external trainers
Mental Health First Aider 10 staff per school at £93.75 per person £937.50
Mental Health Awareness Training approx. 30 staff per school £1,500.00
Cost per school £2,437.50
58 remaining schools £141,346
Officer Time 8 days a month over 18 months £33,261
TOTAL £174,607
Option 2
Use LA internal trainer
Five trainers trained plus annual membership £14,750
Officer Time 8 days a month over 18 months £33,261

Page 23

TOTAL £48,011

Briefing note

Option 3
Blended approach using some external trainers for 29 schools and internal capacity to provide
for a further 29 schools
29 schools external trainers £70,673
29 schools internal trainers £14,750
Officer Time 8 days a month over 18 months £33,261
TOTAL £118,684

Option 3 is the preferred option due to limited capacity within School Improvement and that of the
external providers.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6
Meeting:

Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee

Date:

25 March 2021

Title:

Post 16 Education

Authors:

Diane Buckle,
Assistant Director for Education
Mark Barrett, Senior Manager
Employment and Skills

Service:

Health, Education, Care and Safeguarding

Wards affected:

All

1.

Purpose of Report
This report provides an update on participation and the options available in
post 16 education, employment and training in North Tyneside.

2.

Introduction

2.1

Sub Committee members have received previous updates on Adult
Education, Apprenticeships, an update on delivery of the North Tyneside
Employment and Skills Strategy and a previous update on Post 16 Education
in March 2020. This report focuses specifically on the options available to
young people aged 16 and 17 years (Years 12 and 13) and takes account of
changes that have occurred during 2020-21 due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

2.2

Post 16 provision includes a range of options for young people following
completion of Year 11 including studying full-time at school, college or with a
training provider. The definition of full-time participation is at least 540 hours a
year; this is around 18 hours per week.

2.3

Young people can enter full-time employment or volunteering combined with
part-time study or training and there is also an option to enrol in an
apprenticeship, traineeship or supported internship.

2.4

Under previous legislation it was compulsory for young people to remain in
education until the age of 16. However, as a result of legislation introduced in
September 2013, the law requires that young people continue in education,
employment or training until the age of 18.

1

Page 25

2.5

This change was introduced to improve the career and life prospects for
young people with the aims being:
•

Young people can develop a greater range of skills
• The likelihood of unemployment is significantly reduced
• An increase in earning potential
• Offers the opportunity for young people who are disengaged with
mainstream education to develop new skills in an alternative setting.
2.6

The Local Authority has broad duties to encourage, enable and assist young
people, between the ages of 16-18, to participate in education, employment or
training. The legislative framework includes:
•

Section.2, Para 4 Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act
2009 – ‘’A local education authority may secure the provision for their area
of full-time education suitable to the requirements of persons over
compulsory school age who have not attained the age of 19.’’
• S.10 Education and Skills Act 2008 – ‘’A local education authority in
England must ensure that its functions are (so far as they are capable of
being so exercised) exercised so as to promote the effective participation
in education or training of persons belonging to its area.’’
• S.12 Education and Skills Act 2008 – ‘’A local education authority in
England must make arrangements to enable it to establish (so far as it is
possible to do so) the identities of persons belonging to its area who are
not participating (in education or training.)’’
2.7

In so far as meeting these duties, Local authorities are expected to:
•

Provide strategic leadership in their communities to ensure that there is a
network of support available which encourages, enables and assists the
participation of young people in education, training and employment. This
includes liaising with local partners such as employers, Jobcentre Plus,
community sector organisations and youth offending teams
• Local Authorities must collect information about young people in their area
who are not participating and to target their resources on those who
require them most
• Local Authorities are expected to liaise with education providers to identify
children under the age of 16 who are at risk of not participating post-16
and for intensive support to be provided to remedy the situation. This is
particularly important in relation to children with SEND who are
significantly less likely to participate post-16 in comparison to their peers
without SEND
• Every young person who reaches the age of 16 or 17 in any
given academic year is entitled to an offer of a suitable place, by the end
of September, to continue in education or training the following year.
2

Page 26

2.8

The Education and Skills Act 2008 placed two Raising Participation Age
related duties on education providers with regard to 16- and 17-year olds
including:
•
•

•

Section 11 places a duty on education providers to promote good
attendance to enable young people to meet their duty to participate
Section 13 places a duty on education providers to inform their local
authority when a young person is no longer participating, for example,
if they have dropped out
Under S.29 of the Education Act 2011, Schools are under a duty to
secure independent careers guidance for pupils in years 8-13 on the
full range of education and training options, including apprenticeships.
Schools are expected to work in partnership with local employers and
other education and training providers to ensure that young people
have a wide range of options available to them.

3.

The Current Data Picture

3.1

There is a range of data that is used to inform the activities of the Local
Authority to ensure that young people can participate in education,
employment and training.

3.2

Firstly, it is a requirement of the September Guarantee that a suitable offer of
education or training is made to all young people aged 16-17 years. In 2020,
the impact of Covid-19 meant that this guarantee became even more
important with a focus of the Authority’s Connexion Service being to work with
schools to ensure that over 2000 young people due to leave school in July
2020 had an early recorded ‘intended destination’ with ‘offers of learning’
being secured as quickly as possible.

3.3

A key focus for the team was those wanting to progress to Apprenticeships
and employment with training; expected to be impacted by the pandemic, as
well as vulnerable young people including those at risk of being Not in
Education, Employment or Training (NEET), Care Leavers and young people
with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).

3.4

In 2019, 97.1% young people received an offer of a suitable place in
education or training, including 17-year olds continuing on two-year courses;
this figure was 97.2% in 2020. These rates compare to 94.8% in the North
East and 94.3% in England. For those that did not receive an offer this was
quickly followed up to ensure that appropriate destinations were secured as
quickly as possible. This includes 17-year olds whose destinations are
unknown or they have refused a place and continue to be NEET.

3

Page 27

3.5

As well as the September Guarantee and Activity Surveys that measure
participation of young people leaving Year 11, the Local Authority continues to
track the participation and destinations of all young people aged 16-17 to
ensure that they continue to receive appropriate provision of education and
training. The table below sets out the most recent participation and Not in
Education, Employment and Training (NEET) data for January 2021.
Destination
In Education, Employment or
Training (EET)

North Tyneside
94.2%

North East
92.4%

England
93.1%

Not in Education, Employment
or Training (NEET)

2.8%

4.7%

2.8%

Destination Not Known

1.4%

0.9%

2.6%

Full Time Education

84.6%

83.0%

87.6%

Apprenticeships

6.8%

3.2%

3.5%

Work Based Learning

2.4%

1.6%

1.1%

Main destinations:

3.6

North Tyneside compares favourably with other North East Local Authority
areas and the national average when comparing participation in EET and
NEET Rates. In addition, participation in Apprenticeships amongst 16 and 17year olds, despite a small decline this year, is significantly higher than the
national and regional average despite apprenticeship starts falling in North
Tyneside since the introduction of Apprenticeship Reforms in 2017 and 2018.

3.7

In terms of the destinations, the majority of young people leaving at Year 11
continue into school sixth forms or attend further education colleges.

4.

Recent Policy Announcements

4.1

Plan for Jobs

4.1.1 The Chancellor of the Exchequer presented his ‘Plan for Jobs’ to Parliament
on Wednesday 8 July 2020 to outline how the government will boost job
creation in the UK. The relevant measures include:
•

Kickstart Scheme – a £2 billion fund to create 6-month work placements
aimed at those aged 16-24 who are on Universal Credit and are deemed
to be at risk of long-term unemployment. Funding available for each job
will cover 100% of the relevant National Minimum Wage for 25 hours a
4

Page 28

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

week, plus the associated employer National Insurance contributions and
employer minimum automatic enrolment contributions
New funding for National Careers Service – £32 million funding over the
next 2 years for the National Careers Service
Traineeships for young people – £111 million this year for traineeships in
England, to fund work placements and training for 16-24-year olds. This
funding will fund employers who provide trainees with work experience at
a rate of £1,000 per trainee
Payments for employers who hire new apprentices – a new payment of
£2,000 (increased to £3000 in March 2021) to employers in England for
each new apprentice they hire aged under 25, and a £1,500 payment for
each new apprentice they hire aged 25 and over, from 1st August 2020 to
30th September 2021. These payments will be in addition to the existing
£1,000 payment the government already provides for new 16-18-year-old
apprentices, and those aged under 25 with an Education, Health and Care
Plan
High value courses for school and college leavers – £101 million for the
2020-21 academic year to give all 18-19-year olds in England the
opportunity to study targeted high value Level 2 and 3 courses when there
are not employment opportunities available to them
Expanded Youth Offer – expand and increase the intensive support
offered by DWP in Great Britain to young jobseekers, to include all those
aged 18-24 in the Intensive Work Search group in Universal Credit
Enhanced work search support – £895 million to enhance work search
support by doubling the number of work coaches in Jobcentre Plus before
the end of the financial year across Great Britain
Expansion of the Work and Health Programme – up to £95 million this
year to expand the scope of the Work and Health Programme in Great
Britain to introduce additional voluntary support in the autumn for those on
benefits that have been unemployed for more than 3 months
Job finding support service – £40 million to fund private sector capacity to
introduce a job finding support service in Great Britain in the autumn. This
online, one-to-one service will help those who have been unemployed for
less than three months increase their chances of finding employment
Flexible Support Fund – increase the funding for the Flexible Support
Fund by £150 million in Great Britain, including to increase the capacity of
the Rapid Response Service. It will also provide local support to claimants
by removing barriers to work such as travel expenses for attending
interviews
New funding for sector-based work academies – £17 million this year to
triple the number of sector-based work academy placements in England in
order to provide vocational training and guaranteed interviews for more
people
5

Page 29

•

4.2

Construction Talent Retention Scheme – to support the redeployment of
workers at risk of redundancy.

Skills for Jobs Plan

4.2.1 The Government published its Skills for Jobs: Lifelong Learning for
Opportunity and Growth White Paper on 21 January 2021. The key measures
announced under some key themes were:
4.2.2 Putting employers at the heart of post-16 skills:
•

•

•

•
•

•
•
•

•

Give employers a central role working with further education colleges,
other providers and local stakeholders to develop new Local Skills
Improvement Plans which shape technical skills provision so that it meets
local labour market skills needs
Pilot Local Skills Improvement Plans in Trailblazer local areas, exploring
an approach where they are led by accredited Chambers of Commerce
and other business representative organisations in collaboration with local
providers; and engage employer and provider groups to ensure we create
the most effective models of employer representation before wider rollout
Make Strategic Development Funding available in 2021/22 in a number of
pilot areas to support colleges to reshape their provision to address local
priorities that have been agreed with local employers
Ensure government has up-to-date and expert advice on the labour
market and national skills gaps from the Skills and Productivity Board
Align the substantial majority of post-16 technical and higher technical
education and training to employer-led standards set by the Institute for
Apprenticeships and Technical Education, so skills provision meets skills
need
Continue to improve and grow apprenticeships, so more employers and
individuals can benefit from them as part of the Lifetime Skills Guarantee
Improve the quality of traineeships, to better support young people to
transition to apprenticeships and other occupations
Continue to support participation in English, maths, and digital training to
meet employers’ needs and support people to progress in employment or
further study
Invite proposals through the Strategic Development Fund to establish
College Business Centres within further education colleges to work with
employers in a designated sector on business development and
innovation.

4.2.3 Providing the advanced technical and higher technical skills the nation needs:
•

Use the new £2.5 billion National Skills Fund to enhance the funding to
support adults to upskill and reskill. This will include an offer, backed by
6

Page 30

•

•
•
•

£95 million in 2021-22, for all adults to achieve their first full advanced
(level 3) qualification as part of the Lifetime Skills Guarantee
Expand our flagship Institutes of Technology programme to every part of
the country by the end of this Parliament, to spearhead the increase in
higher-level technical skills in Science, Technology, Engineering and
Maths
Continue to roll out T Levels, to prepare students for entry into skilled
employment or higher levels of technical study, including apprenticeships
Reform higher technical education (levels 4 and 5) with a new approval
system based on employer-led standards
Create clear progression routes for students towards the higher-level
technical qualifications that employers need.

4.2.4 A flexible Lifetime Skills Guarantee:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Implement the flexible Lifelong Loan Entitlement to the equivalent of four
years of post-18 education from 2025
As a pathway towards the Lifelong Loan Entitlement, stimulate the
provision of high-quality higher technical education (levels 4 and 5),
working towards making it as easy to get a student finance loan for an
approved Higher Technical Qualification as it is for a full-length degree
Introduce pilots to stimulate higher technical education and incentivise
more flexible and modular provision
Determine how best to stimulate credit transfer between institutions and
courses
Consult on the detail and scope of the Lifelong Loan Entitlement in 2021
Improve how teaching is delivered so that it is more accessible, with the
use of digital and blended learning
Provide clear information about career outcomes through occupational
maps, wage returns data and ensuring providers give pupils information
about all options.

4.2.5 Responsive providers supported by effective accountability, governance, and
intervention:
•

Consult on the following proposals to reform funding and accountability
system:
o Simplification and streamlining of funding for further education to
support high-value provision relevant to the labour market, with
elements of simplified and streamlined funding to be tested ahead of
consultation
o Give more certainty to providers over their funding, including
considering how to move to a multi-year funding regime

7

Page 31

o

•
•

•

•

Reform the accountability approach, relaxing ringfences and
reporting; instead focusing on outcomes
o Introduce new accountability structures to underpin the delivery of
Local Skills Improvement Plans
Continue to invest in the college estate, to transform facilities and enable
high-quality provision
Introduce new powers for the Secretary of State for Education, so the
government can intervene quickly and decisively in cases where there are
persistent problems that cannot otherwise be addressed, either with
colleges not delivering effectively or where local providers are unable to
deliver the skills priorities for that area
Strengthen the governance of colleges, by taking a clearer position on
what good governance and leadership looks like and placing specific
requirements on colleges and other provider types
Ensure that subcontracting practices improve educational outcomes.

4.2.6 Supporting outstanding teaching:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Launch a national recruitment campaign for teachers in further education
settings
Base Initial Teacher Education on employer-led standards
Improve the provision of high-quality professional development and
support progression for teachers
Facilitate a strong relationship between industry and providers
Support apprenticeships teachers and lecturers with a tailored
professional development offer
Introduce comprehensive workforce data collection.

5.

Provision Available

5.1

The 2019-20 and 2020-21 academic years have been severely impacted by
the Covid-19 pandemic with regular changes in restrictions and guidance
meaning that all providers have had to adapt their offer to provide a mix of
classroom and remote learning and to introduce new health and safety
measures including Covid Secure classrooms and buildings and the
establishment of Lateral Flow Testing for learners and staff. Providers have
responded positively maintaining a broad range of provision for young people
and have worked in partnership to ensure the young people of North Tyneside
maintained their learning.

8

Page 32

5.2

Sixth Form

5.2.1 In total, 13 schools offer post 16 provision in North Tyneside including 6
maintained schools, 3 academies and four special schools. In the main sixth
forms will offer A and AS level qualifications, alongside a smaller number of
BTEC vocational qualifications in areas such as health and social care. The A
Level results for maintained schools in North Tyneside in 2020 using average
grade and average points that students achieved per A level entry scores
shows North Tyneside performance is broadly in line with both state-funded
and all schools in England.
5.3

Further Education (FE) Colleges

5.3.1 A significant number of Year 11 leavers in North Tyneside go on to study in a
Further Education college. In the main students’ progress to Tyne Coast or
Newcastle College.
5.3.2 Tyne Coast College is the result of the merger of Tyne Met and South
Tyneside College in August 2017 and includes the brands of TyneMet
College, South Tyneside College, Queen Alexandra Sixth Form College and
South Shields Marine School. TyneMet offers a diverse curriculum for 16-18’s
and adult learners which includes vocational education, apprenticeships and A
Levels.
5.3.3 The College is the only STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths)
assured college in the North East of England, recognised for excellence in
science, technology, engineering and maths, and was also rated ‘Good’ by
Ofsted in October 2019 as part of the new Ofsted inspection framework.
5.3.4 The College’s vocational education provision offers learners more practical
skills, knowledge and experience with a curriculum developed in a variety of
sub brands including:
North East Sports Academy (NESA) – the sports academy allows learners
to combine academic studies alongside their sporting ambition. Learners can
study either a vocational course or A Levels with training slots built in around
their studies. It offers a range of academies from football, rugby, basketball
and individual athlete academy.
TMC Construction - Officially opened in March 2019, the new purpose built
£2.6million construction centre boasts the latest industry equipment as well as
IT facilities, classrooms, learning hubs and demo areas. Trades include
bricklaying, plastering, dry-lining, painting and decorating, plumbing, joinery
and site carpentry, and electrical installation.
IGNITE – Centre for Engineering and Innovation - The Ignite Centre for
Engineering & Innovation delivers a comprehensive range of training solutions
9

Page 33

in Engineering and STEM disciplines to increase local skills for the
manufacturing sectors operating across the North East. The Centre also
engages with primary and secondary school pupils to raise awareness of
exciting career options in engineering and STEM related sectors as well as
delivering accredited and bespoke training direct to industry on demand.
5.3.5 The College also offers A Level courses with experienced teachers, dedicated
support staff and facilities supporting learning and development.
5.3.6 In 2018, Newcastle College’s Energy Academy launched a new strategy to
deliver highly vocational, employer-led STEM education and training for the
Energy Sector. A key cornerstone of this strategy is an innovative partnership
with Port Training Services in Blyth, and the strategy is further underpinned by
employer partnerships with a range of Energy Sector Employers, including
Royal IHC and the ORE Catapult.
5.3.7 The Energy Academy opened in 2012 as a purpose-built centre of innovation
and training for the Energy Sector, delivering qualifications from Level 2 to
Level 6 in subsea engineering, renewable energy technologies and
fabrication, including a range of apprenticeships. In recent years the
academy had lost its connections with local industry, although since opening,
more than 1200 students have been trained, with many now working within
the energy sector.
5.3.8 To refocus Energy Academy activities, Newcastle College separated the
Energy Academy from its Engineering department at the start of 2018,
appointing a new Head of Academy, Alan Goundry, and engaged former NOF
board member and Subsea NE Executive Committee member Andrew Esson
as strategic advisor.
5.3.9 The new Energy Academy strategy launched in 2018 has already reinvigorated provision, with record enrolment in 2019, aiming to create a
pipeline of young talent. There are currently 239 students enrolled at the
Energy Academy across Wallsend and Blyth undertaking a range of
qualifications including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Level 3 Subsea Engineering and Offshore Renewables (Wallsend and
Blyth)
Level 3 Welding and Fabrication
Foundation Degree in Subsea Engineering
Foundation Degree in Offshore Renewable Technologies
Welding Apprentices
Maintenance, Ops & Engineering Technician Apprentices

10

Page 34

5.3.10 The young people enrolled at Wallsend and Blyth all seek employment in the
Energy Sector, either via apprenticeships, technician opportunities or
progression from Level 3 qualifications on to Foundation Degrees and
possibly Full Degrees.
5.3.11 In January 2019 the Energy Academy entered into a Strategic Partnership
with Port of Blyth. The objective of the partnership is to collaborate in the
development and delivery of offshore, marine, subsea and port related
training to deliver Energy Sector Further Education, Higher Education and
Apprenticeships at Port Training Services for the benefit of the local Blyth
community and Port of Blyth based employers. These activities are additional,
and complementary, to established education and training provision at the
Energy Academy in Wallsend, in effect creating two educational portals into
the Energy Sector, one in Wallsend, and one in Blyth.
5.3.12 The initial fruit of this partnership is a two-year Level 3 Qualification in Subsea
Engineering and Offshore Renewable Technology aimed at 16-year-old
GCSE school leavers, providing a vocationally oriented 3 A Level equivalent
qualification, creating a future generation technicians and engineers for the
Energy Sector. Students spend two days a week in classroom and workshop
activities at Port Training Services, and one day a week in class-room
activities at the Energy Academy in Wallsend. Thirty-eight students enrolled
on the course this September, exceeding the initial target of twenty-five
students. The workshop activities have received significant in-kind support
from local employers, including loan of a Hi-Traq trenching prototype and
engineering components by Royal IHC, and a hydraulic power unit from
Global Marine.
5.3.13 Future delivery at Port Training Services will include Foundation Degree
courses in Subsea Engineering and in Offshore Renewable Technologies,
and delivery of technician apprenticeships on behalf of local employers.
5.3.14 In addition to the formal partnership agreement with Port of Blyth, the Energy
Academy has also entered into a number of innovative employer partnerships
with Energy sector companies including the ORE Catapult, Royal IHC, Barrier
Ex, Animmersion and Hytorc (and a cross section of other businesses in the
General Engineering and Digital sectors).
5.3.15 The core principal of the Employer Partnership Model is the delivery of
transformational, highly vocational STEM related education with exceptional
levels of employer support, focussing on creating a high quality pathway into
industry for future generations of technicians and engineers, with a key focus
on Level 3 post-16 Further Education and Foundation Degree (Level 4 and 5)
Higher Education, plus apprenticeship qualifications.

11

Page 35

5.3.16 The key features of the approach are:
•

•
•
•

A collaboration between employers and Newcastle College Energy
Academy harnessing teaching expertise of HE and FE, industry
knowledge and expertise from employers.
STEM specialists, focusing on level 3, 4 and 5 provision
Education pathways catering for school leavers and older learners
already in employment.
Highly vocational technical skills training creating a future generation of
technicians with skills which will drive forward our region’s Energy
Sector.

5.3.17 The Energy Academy is keen to continue to expand its employer partnerships
and engage with Subsea North East members who have a mutual interest in
helping the Energy Academy develop future technician and engineer talent,
for the benefit of the Energy Sector, and local communities. Possible ways to
support the Academy includes:
•

•

•
•
•
5.4

Participation in an Energy Advisory Board which will provide:
o Support in shaping our courses and course curriculum
o Insight into future technology trends and industry needs
Donations or loans of equipment for our Workshop Learning Zones at
the Energy Academy and Port Training Services (and occasional
support in practical workshops using this equipment)
Provide educational site visits for our students, enabling access to
specialist equipment and resources
Delivery of workshops/master classes/inspirational lectures by senior
engineers
Young engineers sharing their stories of their route into employment.

Work Based Learning

5.4.1 There are range of Work Based Learning providers who operate in or in
neighbouring Local Authority areas and provide an essential type of provision
for young people looking to pursue a more vocational route into the labour
market. The main providers in North Tyneside are Northumbria Youth Action
(NYA), Employment, Training and Skills (ETS) North (formerly Barnardos
Palmersville Training) and the NTC Employment and Skills Service.
5.4.2 NYA is a small charity based on Hudson Street, North Shields. Formed over
25 years ago in disused council workshops, it has grown gradually and now
has its own modern, purpose-built premises in the North Shields Youth
Village. In total to date, an estimated 2,800 young people have been helped to
improve their life chances through provision of vocational training in a caring
and supportive environment.
12

Page 36

5.4.3 Through the medium of motor vehicle, bicycle, hairdressing and hospitality
training NYA have helped young people mature and make the most of their
potential. Their mission statement is:
NYA is committed to unleashing young people’s full potential through
the world of work and training to provide a fuller, richer life.
5.4.4 NYA is a specialist, independent motor vehicle, cycle, hairdressing and
hospitality training provider which delivers:
• Pre-16 training to school students who are at risk of exclusion
• Study Programmes to 16 and 17-year olds who frequently have been
refused training elsewhere
• Level 2 motor vehicle and hairdressing courses to 16-18-year olds who
have successfully completed their first year study programme
• Motor Vehicle apprenticeships to 16-25-year olds who have, as a result
of placements, been employed by local dealerships and other reputable
garages
• Level 2 and 3 motor vehicle courses to clients within the trade who wish
to gain new skills and qualifications
• DVSA approved MOT tester and Manager courses.
5.4.5 NYA operates a fully equipped garage which services and repairs cars, for
members of the public, at reasonable rates. NYA also recycles push bikes.
Learners renovate donated bikes which are then sold, at low prices, to local
families and young people.
5.4.6 All staff are DBS checked, experienced and well qualified for their roles within
NYA. In addition, all staff share values which always put the needs of young
people first. Over 90% of young people achieve qualifications while at NYA
and over 95% progress into further study or work.
5.4.7 Employment, Training and Skills (ETS) North (formerly Barnardos
Palmersville Training) is also based at the Youth Village on Hudson Street in
North Shields. Their current post 16 offer in North Tyneside is predominantly
covered by the following provision.
5.4.8 Study Programmes are delivered from the centre ETS North, in North Shields.
This includes the occupational areas of; hairdressing & beauty therapy, retail
& warehousing, painting & decorating, construction multi-skills and business
administration. All programmes include a blend of employability, work
experience, maths and/or English as required and vocational qualifications up
to in some cases, level 3. Barnardo’s has had excellent rates of progression
from study programme into positive destinations including further or higher
education, employment or apprenticeships.
13

Page 37

5.4.9 In addition to Barnardo’s provision for Study Programmes delivered from
North Shields, it also manages three sub-contractors who add breadth and
further capacity to the young person’s offer across North Tyneside. They are
Resources (NE) Limited who deliver IT, Northumbria Youth Action - motor
vehicle, hairdressing and hospitality and North Tyneside Council construction.
5.4.10 Apprenticeships are offered in the following occupational areas: Business &
administration, painting & decorating, retail and logistics, facilities
management, hairdressing and beauty therapy. The majority are delivered at
level 2 and 3, with a smaller number at level 4. In addition, and as part of this
offer, Barnardo’s is constantly looking to create new vacancies as an
employer for Apprenticeships – young people are actively encouraged to
pursue these opportunities as they seek to develop a more diverse workforce
and this includes providing positive futures for service users through
apprenticeships. In North Tyneside, Barnardos have created more than
twenty apprenticeship opportunities in recent years.
5.4.11 Although offered to the 19+ age group, the largest proportion of adult learners
are in the 19-24 age group. This has been a very successful programme with
success rates at or above 85% for the past few years. The content of the
programmes includes employability, with most occupational areas delivered in
North Tyneside by Barnardo’s offering qualifications up to level 3. A
successful logistics programme has strong links in the sector to employment
opportunities across a range of logistic and distribution employers including
international airports.
5.4.12 Barnardo’s continues to be judged as good by OFSTED for all of its provision.
5.4.13 The North Tyneside Employment and Skills Service is located within the
Health, Education, Care and Safeguarding Directorate and consists of a
number of key services including Connexions Careers Education and
Information Advice and Guidance (CEIAG), Education to Employment
services linking schools with businesses, employer engagement and
Employability projects.
5.4.14 Our Adult Learning Service, rated ‘Good’ by Ofsted in April 2018, is the
delivery arm for all of the local authority’s adult learning provision and holds
contracts with the Education and Skills Funding Agency through funding
streams: 16-18 Study Programmes, Adult Education Budget (AEB), 16-18
apprenticeships and 19+ apprenticeships. Our Adult Learning curriculum
covers thirteen subject sector areas and Family Learning. The delivery is
distributed in 29 venues across the borough to ensure increased access for
residents.

14

Page 38

5.4.15 The services are informed by Government priorities for education and training,
including increasing rigour and expectations of education delivery; protect
vulnerable children and adults; and preparing well-rounded young people and
adults ready for further learning, work and life. Achievement of these priorities
is regulated by Ofsted, the Office for Standards in Education, Children’s
Services and Skills. Priorities of the service are also informed by external
funding providers, where priorities for funding are:
•
•
•
•
•

Apprenticeships, with a particular focus on 16-24 year olds
Traineeships to deliver work preparation training for 16 to 18 and 19 to
24 year olds
Support for low-skilled workless adults, including those with the most
complex needs.
English and maths
Community Learning as of the wider skills offer to transform the lives of
people experiencing serious social and economic disadvantage, that
inspires people to succeed and supports them to lead fulfilling lives.

5.4.16 The service currently has two notable areas of provision for young people
aged 16-18, which are making a demonstrable impact on the young people:
Working Roots – is a 16-18 Study Programme that is delivered through a
partnership between North Tyneside Housing, Justice Prince and NTC
Employment and Skills Service. Up to 25 young people per year are offered a
programme that includes vocational training in construction and horticulture,
English and maths qualifications, 3.5 days per week work placement within
North Tyne Housing and ongoing mentoring support. The programme, which
runs for a year, has seen progression of some very vulnerable and
disadvantaged young people in North Tyneside into Apprenticeships and
Further Learning.
‘Ignite your Potential’ Study Programme for Special Educational Needs
and Disabilities – is a three-year Study Programme for young people with
SEND, which commenced in September 2019. Aiming to support young
people with an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) leaving school at
age 16 it provides a route to Apprenticeships, Supported Internships and
further learning through the following programme of support:
•
•
•

Year 1 – Independent living skills and community engagement
Year 2 – 4 days vocational Study Programme with one day per week
work placement
Year 3 – 3 days Advanced vocational Study Programme with two days
per week work placement.

15

Page 39

Throughout the programme, English and maths is supported to ensure the
young people have the relevant qualifications to support progression. This
programme has informed a similar proposed programme for Care Leavers.
6.

Post 16 Education Challenges

6.1

As outlined in this paper, the Covid-19 pandemic has already had some major
short-term impacts on the availability of Post-16 provision and how this is
delivered. The medium to long term impact on young people and providers is
not yet known, but we can expect these to be considerable and policy makers
and education providers will need to adapt their responses to respond to
these opportunities and challenges accordingly.

6.2

Funding – the amount of 16-18 funding available from the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) continues to represent a challenge for
providers, both in terms of the amount of funding per learner and the system
for obtaining additional funding (lagged learners) to expand and deliver new
programmes. As the numbers of apprenticeship and employment
opportunities are limited due to Covid-19 this funding pressure is only
expected to increase.

6.3

Apprenticeship starts – Despite our success in North Tyneside in mitigating
some impacts, the downturn in apprenticeship starts, particularly for 16-18
year olds. This has been significant since the introduction of the
Apprenticeship reforms, and the impact of Covid-19 is expected to see a
further decline in Apprenticeship starts in 2020-21. Apprenticeships are at risk
of not being seen as a viable alternative for school leavers, and as the
number of starts continues to diminish, more needs to be done to ensure this
option post 16 remains viable.

6.4

Types of Apprenticeships - linked to the point above, the reduction in
approved apprenticeship standards at level 2 is also impacting now on post
16 apprenticeship starts and will further impact moving forward. The dismissal
by the IfA of any further submissions by the trailblazer group for a business
and administration level 2 apprenticeship standard, further removes what has
been the realistic starting point for many young people on a journey into
higher level learning and better paid employment.

6.5

Vocational routes - More than 160 “duplicate qualifications” at level 3 and
below had their funding removed from August 2020 – including 76 BTECs. It
is part of an aim to remove “poor quality post-16 qualifications” and follows
consultation to decide the future of over 12,000 vocational qualifications at
level 3 and below. The government wants to make A-levels, T-levels and
apprenticeships the “gold standard” option for young people after they take
their GCSEs from 2020.

16

Page 40

6.6

It will only continue to fund alternative qualifications at level 3 and below –
such as applied generals, BTECs and Tech Levels – that do not overlap with
them and are “high quality, are necessary, have a clear purpose, and lead to
good outcomes”.

6.7

These changes have raised some concerns amongst providers regarding a
reduction in choice for learners and removing viable routes for more
vulnerable and disadvantaged learners. There is also concerns that many
providers were not ready to deliver T-Levels from August 2020 and that due to
Covid-19 the availability of work placements has become even more
challenging.

7.

Background Information

7.1

The following documents and information have been used in the compilation
of this report.
Education and Skills Act 2008 – available at:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/25/contents/enacted.
Education Act 2011 – available at:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/21/contents/enacted.
A level performance in North Tyneside at the end of 16 to 18 in 2019 - all
students – available at: https://www.compare-schoolperformance.service.gov.uk/schools-bytype?step=default&table=schools&region=392&la-name=northtyneside&geographic=la&for=16to18.
Plan for Jobs – available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/topicalevents/plan-for-jobs
Skills for Jobs: Lifelong Learning for Opportunity and Growth White Paper –
available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/skills-for-jobslifelong-learning-for-opportunity-and-growth

7.2

On Provision:
Tyne Coast College - http://tynecoast.ac.uk/
Newcastle College Energy Academy - https://www.ncl-coll.ac.uk/world-classfacilities/energy-academy
Northumbria Youth Action (NYA): www.northumbriaya.co.uk
ETS North - https://www.barnardos.org.uk/what-we-do/supporting-youngpeople/employment-training-skills

17

Page 41

North Tyneside Council – Employment and Skills Service –
www.skillsnorthtyneside.org.uk
8.

Appendices
None

18

Page 42

